ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 9, 2010
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Gary Stevens

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 313
"An Act relating to the Al aska Chal |l enge Youth Acadeny.™

- MOVED SB 313 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 313

SHORT TITLE: YOUTH ACADEMY FUNDI NG REPORT
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

04/ 05/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 05/ 10 (S) EDC, FIN
04/ 09/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

JOMO STEWART, Staff

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 313.

BRI GADI ER GENERAL THOVAS KATKAS, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Fort Ri chardson, AK

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- Apri |

9, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 313; the current
| evel of state funding for the Al aska Challenge Youth Acadeny is
adequat e.

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Department of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs (DWA)

Fort Ri chardson, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 313; the current
| evel of state funding for the Alaska Chall enge Youth Acadeny is
adequat e.

EDDI E JEANS, Director

School Fi nance

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded supporting testinony for SB 313.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 00: 56 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators O son, Huggins, Davis, Thomas, and Meyer.
Senator Stevens arrived during the course of the neeting.

SB 313- YOUTH ACADEMY FUNDI NG REPORT

8:01:16 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER announced consi deration of SB 313.

8:01:51 AM

JOMD STEWART, Staff to Senator Meyer, said that SB 313 changes
the way the Al aska Chall enge Youth Acadeny ("Youth Acadeny") is
funded. He explained that this is a very successful residentia

hi gh school for students who have w thdrawn from school prior to
graduating. Currently the Youth Acadeny receives funding that is
equal to the base student allocation (BSA) multiplied by 7 for
each residential student and the BSA multiplied by .6 for each
nonresi dential student, mnus the anmount received by the program
in federal matching grant funds.

Under SB 313 the Youth Acadeny would receive a flat allocation
of $11,990 for each fulltime student, which effectively locks in
the state funding at the current level. Federal funds are held
harm ess.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2010



SENATOR HUGA NS referenced the sponsor statenment that says,
"However, as the BSA has grown over the years - to cover
retirement costs and other increases in education - it has
resulted in a windfall that is no longer reflective of the true
cost of the program"™ and said at sonme point he'd like to know
if this changes that.

8: 03: 35 AM
SENATOR COLSON asked how they justify funding a residential
student at the sane rate as a nonresidential student.

MR. STEWART deferred the question to the Departnent of Mlitary
& Veterans Affairs (DWA) because the |egislation was introduced
at their request.

8:04:11 AM

BRI GADI ER GENERAL THOMAS KATKAS, Comm ssioner, Departnent of
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs, explained that the current state
funding for the Youth Acadeny is adequate; this is sinply an
attenpt to stabilize the nmethod for getting that funding. He
deferred to M. Pierre to explain the nmechanics.

MCHUGH PIERRE, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Department of Mlitary &
Veterans Affairs (DWA), explained that as the BSA increased
from about $3,000 to al nost $6, 000, the Youth Acadeny allocation
was a 7X multiplier. Wien the Legislature added $500 per student
to the BSA, the Youth Acadeny received $3,500 nore per student.
VWhile this growth was unintentional, it did allow DWA to expand
the program M. Pierre inforned the commttee that when DWA
received an additional $1.5 mllion for the Youth Acadeny in
FYO5, they noved $1 million to capital and used the remaining
$.5 mllion to pay the PERS costs for their enpl oyees.

MR. PIERRE said Eddie Jeans, the finance director for DEED,
worked on the original forrmula for the Youth Acadeny and DWA
worked closely with himto develop this new fornula to maintain
the current |evel of state funding. For sinplicity they decided
to use just one formula to match the current budget. The intent
was not to decrease the state funding because that's what has
made this such a successful program |In fact, the State of
Al aska funds the Youth Acadeny at a higher rate than any simlar
acadeny in the nation. He said the current rate is perfect, but
if they do need nore noney in future years they want to be
treated |i ke other schools and be able to ask for it.

8:08: 27 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2010



CO- CHAIR MEYER asked how they arrived at the flat $11,990 per
student all ocati on.

MR. PIERRE replied the idea was to maintain the current funding
| evel and this was a sinple way to achi eve that goal.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked if he's confortable that the current |eve
of funding will provide sufficient funding for the program

MR. PIERRE answered it's perfect to maintain the current program
and al |l ow confortable growth.

8:09: 29 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS nentioned the threshold nunber to be considered
a site and asked what the site nunber is for the Youth Acadeny.

MR. PIERRE said replied they have to maintain different |evels
for the federal funding.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what the nunber is to conformto the state
BSA.

MR. PIERRE deferred the question to M. Jeans and continued to
express confidence that enrollnment won't fall below 265-270
cadets. Currently the Youth Acadeny has 186 beds and is getting
ready to expand to 225 beds. The goal is to be able to graduate
close to 500 cadets per year and this formula accommobdat es that
goal. We really don't anticipate a drop off in enrollnent, he
sai d.

8:11: 09 AM

SENATOR DAVI S asked what nakes him think that noving away from
the BSA and instead asking for flat funding of $11,990 per
student is going to be stabilizing, particularly in light of the
push to increase enrollnment from the pool of students who have
dropped out of school. If your nunbers doubled you'd have to
return to the Legislature and ask for nore noney, she said.

MR. PIERRE replied they will still provide a student count each
Cctober and they will be funded for that number of students. As
enroll ment increases they' |l receive nore noney, so the Youth
Acadeny will be adequately funded to neet student needs. He

reiterated that DWA believes that $11,990 per student is
sufficient to deliver optinum services for residential and
nonr esi denti al students.

8:14: 04 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2010



SENATOR DAVIS clarified that it's the funding she's concerned
about, not the program She asked what the federal/state funding
ratio is right now.

MR. PIERRE replied it's about 75 percent state and 25 percent
f ederal .

SENATOR DAVI S asked if the federal noney is based on a flat rate
or a per student basis.

MR. PIERRE replied it's based on a per student basis and as the
enrollment increases they anticipate that the ratio wll
approach 50/ 50.

8:16: 06 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER expressed concern about becom ng nore dependent
on federal noney and asked if this is arisk to the state.

GENERAL KATKAS said there's a lot of interest nationwide in
keepi ng youth academ es going so he doesn't see this as a risk

Conpared to the prograns in the other states and territories,
the Al aska Chal |l enge Youth Acadeny clearly enjoys the best state
partici pation.

8:17:22 AM
SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned the neeti ng.

CO-CHAIR MEYER admtted that the commttee is unconfortable
agreeing to give less noney to a program that is obviously a
great success. Typically, a program would ask for and receive
nore, he said

MR. PIERRE said he'd like to dispel the notion that capping
funding prevents a program from growing and flourishing. The
Yout h Acadeny doesn't need to receive any nore noney per student
than it currently receives. He reiterated that they've reached
the optimum anount and as nore students enroll they' Il receive
nore noney to address the needs of those students. "Wen we need
nore noney we truly will need it and when we don't need nore you
understand that we're doing great and we won't need nobre noney
and we will be open and honest with you," he said.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said you're smart enough to figure out what you

do and don't need, but we're being redundant is expressing
concern because this is a fairly unique request.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2010



GENERAL KATKAS assured the conmttee that they have thought this
through and believe they've reached equilibrium W' re
reasonabl e people and it would be unreasonable to accept funding
above the current |evel, he said.

8:21.:09 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the pupil/teacher ratio is at the
Yout h Acadeny.

MR. PIERRE replied they have 10-12 teachers for each cadet and
each class has 15-18 cadets. In total about 90 staff work at the
acadeny.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the teachers are state certified.

MR. PIERRE said no; sonme of the teachers are certified, but
that's not a requirenent in private schools.

SENATOR HUGG NS asked if they have a continuing education
program for teachers.

MR. PIERRE explained that they encourage their teachers to take
advantage of the opportunity to take college courses and get
reimbursed, but it is not the same as for state certified
t eachers working in public schools.

8:23:47 AM
SENATOR COLSON asked if the cadets have to pass the high school
exit examto graduate

MR. PIERRE answered yes. They've partnered with Ilocal high
schools in the Anchorage and Mat-Su school districts to offer
the exit exam but there's also a process for cadets to earn
credits at the acadeny and then return to public school and work
to receive their diplom.

8:25:13 AM
CO-CHAIR MEYER asked M. Jeans what he thinks about the new
formula that is being suggested.

EDDI E JEANS, Director of School Finance, Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent (DEED), said it's a wonderful formula

CO CHAI R MEYER asked how they arrived at the nunber

MR. JEANS said he would first provide sone context. The current
funding formula, which was adopted in 2002, provides for the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2010



Youth Acadeny to receive the BSA nultiplied by 7 for resident
students and the BSA multiplied by .6 for nonresident students.
When this statutory forrmula was adopted, the BSA was $3,940 and
the Youth Acadeny received about $27,000 per student in the
residential program Today the BSA is $5,680 per student and the
Yout h Acadeny is receiving $39, 700 per student.

Over the years when the Legislature increased the BSA it was
oftentines to help school districts address their TRS
liabilities. But the Youth Acadeny enployees are hired under
PERS so the increased funds were used to benefit the program
rather than paying down a teacher retirement system (TRS)
liability. What they're saying today is that they've reached a
confortable funding |level for ongoing operations and they don't
need nore.

MR. JEANS explained that to arrive at $11,990 they divided the
total state aid that the Youth Acadeny receives today by the
total nunber of students at the Youth Acadeny. He noted that the
DEED budget this year reflected a $600,000 reduction for the
Yout h Acadeny based on increased federal aid; as federal aid
i ncreases state aid decreases. What DWA is proposing is to drop
the BSA and freeze the per student state funding at the current
level. Then if they receive nore federal aid those additional
resources can be used to expand their program

MR. JEANS said he's talked about this with Deputy Conm ssioner
Pierre a nunber of times and he firmy believes this anmount is
adequate to fund the program for possibly the next 5 years. |If
they believe at sonme point that they need additional funds
they'Il return to the Legislature to ask for nore. For now
they're confortable, DEED is confortable, and it sinplifies the
program

8:29:59 AM

SENATOR OLSON suggested they re-appropriate the surplus to the
general fund because relying on increasing federal funds is a
vol atil e foundati on.

MR. JEANS pointed out that they aren't asking to give anything
back and they aren't asking for nore. They are asking the
Legislature to freeze their state funding at the current |evel
and DEED is perfectly confortable with the request.

SENATOR OLSON asked when the Youth Acadeny decided it had a
st abl e foundati on.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2010



MR. JEANS replied he believes that this discussion has been
ongoing for a nunber of years in this body; it's nmainly centered
on the fact that there isn't a direct relationship between
increases in the foundation program and the 7X increases that
t he Youth Acadeny has received.

8:32: 33 AM
SENATOR OLSON asked if he thinks the bill wll make it through
when it's so late in the session.

MR. JEANS replied that is in legislators' hands. Continuing, he
offered the opinion that DWA should be given credit for
devel opi ng such a stable program that can continue to thrive at
the current |evel of state funding. They're doing a great job
and | applaud them for stepping forward, he said.

8:34:15 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER noted that this bill noves to finance next and
there's also has a conpanion bill in the other body.

8:34:31 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked if the statutory change would be specific
to the Youth Academny or if it would inpact other schools.

MR. PIERRE replied the Alaska Challenge Youth Acadeny has its
own statutory funding schene so this bill only affects the
acadeny.

8:35:28 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER cl osed public testinony.

8:36: 18 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER asked M. Jeans to explain the fiscal note.

8:36: 58 AM

MR JEANS said the fiscal note shows a $300 increase in the
current year over what's in the FY1l budget. In future years the
Youth Acadeny wll submt their student count and DEED w |
calculate the entitlenent, which wll be part of DEED future
budgets that the Legislature considers on an annual basis.

CO- CHAIR MEYER commented that the $300 fiscal note results in a
fi nance commttee referral

8:38: 07 AM

CO-CHAIR THOVAS noved to report SB 313 from conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2010



being no objection, SB 313 noved from the Senate Education
St andi ng Comm ttee.

8:38:22 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Co-Chair Meyer adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmttee
hearing at 8:38 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2010



